
 

                      City of North Miami Beach, Florida 
                            Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) 

 
Redevelopment Advisory Board 
City Hall, 17011 NE 19th Avenue 

4th Floor, Room 426 
North Miami Beach, FL 33162 

 

 

Patrick.Brett@citynmb.com  17050 NE 19th Ave  NMB, FL 33162  (305) 787-6053   NMBCRA.org 

 

Thursday, January 19th, 2017 

5:30 P.M. 

 
NMBCRA Advisory Board:   
Commissioner Phyllis S. Smith, Board Liaison                                    
Bruce Lamberto, Chair                                                                            
Pradel Vilme, Vice Chair                                                            
Mark Antonio                                                                                         
Vladimir Bugera  
Odedd Dayan 
Robert Kriebs 
Brian Sharpe 
Richard Weiner, 1st alternate 

Staff: 
Executive Director Ana M. Garcia 
Deputy City Manager Candido Sosa-Cruz 
Deputy City Attorney Sarah Johnston 
CRA Administrator Patrick Brett 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call: 

2. Approval of Minutes: Regular RAB Meeting: October 20th, 2016  

3. Public Comments: 

4. Action Item: Funding Request ($1,250) as Official Sponsor – 2017 Heart Health Walk, 

Saturday - February 25 

5. Action Item: Commercial Property Improvement Program Update 

6. Discussion Items: Executive Director’s Report 

CRA – WASD sewer line extension nearing completion ($214,885 CRA Contribution 
with $20,334 remaining in purchase order #161236) 
 

7. Next RAB Meeting: February 16th, 2017 

8. Adjournment: 



1 

 

CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH 
BOARDS AND COMMITTEES MEETING MINUTES 

 
NAME OF BOARD/COUNCIL: REDEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD  
NAME OF PERSON PREPARING SUMMARY: M. MOORE, PROTOTYPE, INC. 
NAMES OF STAFF PRESENT: PATRICK BRETT, CRA ADMINISTRATOR, CITY OF 
NORTH MIAMI BEACH; DEPUTY CITY MANAGER CANDIDO SOSA-CRUZ; 
ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY SARAH JOHNSTON; RECORDING SECRETARY 
MONA LAVENTURE, PROTOTYPE, INC. 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: CHAIR BRUCE LAMBERTO, VICE CHAIR PRADEL 
VILME, VLADIMIR BUGERA (arrived 5:45), ROBERT KRIEBS, BRIAN SHARP, 
RICHARD WEINER (1ST ALTERNATE). 
TYPE OF MEETING:  REGULAR MEETING                                
DATE: OCTOBER 20, 2016 
 

MINUTES 

 
AGENDA ITEM 1 – CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL. Chair Lamberto called the meeting 
to order at 5:35 p.m. Roll was called and it was noted a quorum was present. 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 2 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Regular RAB Meeting, September 
15, 2016. Motion made by Mr. Kriebs, seconded by Mr. Sharp, to approve. In a voice 
vote, the motion carried unanimously (5-0). 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3 – PUBLIC COMMENT. None 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4 – ACTION ITEM: Memorandum of Understanding City Services to 
the CRA. (Mr. Brett first explained the new page numbering system of the agenda packet 
for easier reference during the meetings.)  
 
Mr. Brett introduced the Memorandum of Understanding between North Miami Beach 
CRA and the City of North Miami Beach regarding Administration Services. The CRA 
generally does 20% of the City tax increment, or $120,482.00, which is similar to last year. 
Staff recommends approval.   
 
Chair Lamberto asked if the administrative expense of $24,525 is included in the 
$120,482. Mr. Brett corrected his original statement, confirming that the administrative 
expense of $24,525 is NOT included in $120,482, which has already been approved. 
Chair Lamberto noted that the administrative expenses do not include salaries, as Mr. 
Brett’s salary is paid 100% by the CRA. After some clarification, the total budget for the 
CRA is $1.9 million, the City’s TIFF contribution is $600,000, and 20% of that is 
administrative that goes back to the City. [mm1]Mr. Brett explained the methodology of cost 



City of North Miami Beach 
Redevelopment Advisory Board 
October 20, 2016 
Page 2 
 
allocations and how the City arrives at the traditional 20%, and the assumption is that it 
will all be used by the end of the fiscal year.  
 
Motion made by Mr. Weiner, seconded by Vice Chair Vilme, to approve as presented. In 
a voice vote, the motion carried unanimously (5-0). 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5 – ACTION ITEM: Commercial Property Improvement Program 
Update. Mr. Brett gave background on this program, which has been in place for two 
years. It is the 1-to-1 match up to $25,000. Stemming from last month’s discussion, the 
RAB made a recommendation to the CRA Board to remove signage. The CRA Board was 
receptive to the idea. Staff has taken it upon themselves to improve the program since it 
is being opened. A copy of the Miami-Dade CRA Commercial Improvement Grant 
Program for comparison was included in the agenda packet. 
 
[Note: Mr. Bugera arrived at 5:45 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Brett said no action is expected on this at the moment, but he wants to keep it open 
for discussion.  

 The amounts haven’t changed. Still 1-to-1 match up to $25,000 
 Signage was completely removed, no longer an authorized expense 
 Also excluded are general maintenance and repair items 
 Included in original program: 

o Minor improvements and beautification of parking lots  
o Interior repairs or renovations  

 As a comparison, the County CRA program allows for interior improvements 
 Correction of code violation and ADA compliance issues 

o Excluded in existing program 
o County’s program allows for applicant to address code violations 

 
Most of the program has stayed the same, but Staff has added Section 10. The existing 
program lacks giving authority to the Executive Director to do routine maintenance, 
update/fixing the application, making improvements, etc. 
 
Mr. Brett learned in a recent workshop that the CRA program should point to where in the 
redevelopment plan the program gets its authority. Section 11 says this program is 
authorized in the existing Redevelopment Plan, and the amended Redevelopment Plan 
going through the County’s process. Section 12, conflict of interest, is going to be 
removed as it is now covered under the County’s Code of Ethics. 
 
Mr. Brett asked for feedback to take to the CRA Board for discussion. Mr. Kriebs 
suggested looking at the County resolution of code violations, forcing applicants to fix 
problems in order to get money from City. Mr. Brett said, currently, if there are code 
violations, there is no grant. County’s program allows applicant to specify if something 



City of North Miami Beach 
Redevelopment Advisory Board 
October 20, 2016 
Page 3 
 
they want to fix can be in the grant application. Mr. Sosa-Cruz explained “unless the 
proposed work involves the resolution,” which means they can use grant money to fix it, 
but that is not how CRA’s process works – there must be zero violations before even 
applying.  
 
Mr. Sharpe suggested it might be beneficial to apply for a grant at the same time as curing 
code violations, even if the funding is not used towards the improvements. That way, the 
applicant would not have to do a year’s worth of work before applying for grant, and it 
gets the process moving. It was agreed that funds could not be used for fines or liens. 
Discussion on the fine points ensued. Grants should be used for something substantial, 
not routine maintenance. Mr. Brett said he could make a subsection of this point, that the 
applicant could address the code compliance, but still have to maintain the purpose and 
target of this program. Mr. Sosa-Cruz clarified that even though working concurrently, 
before the last payment is made, any and all code violations have to come into 
compliance. Before proceeding, Mr. Brett asked if anyone was opposed to the code 
violations language; none was heard. 
 
Mr. Brett suggested adding another requirement, that property taxes must be current. 
Vice Chair Vilme stated the language is already there. However, Mr. Brett wanted to make 
sure that the language was spelled out specifically under the eligibility criteria. 
 
Mr. Brett stated Staff recommends that it doesn’t matter if the property will be put up for 
sale after the grant is completed because, if it is, it will be reassessed and most likely 
added to the tax rolls at a higher rate. Discussion followed, with general consensus on 
this topic being agreeable. 
 
Chair Lamberto suggested a separate paint program – perhaps 25% rather than the 50/50 
rule – on buildings that weren’t a code violation. Mr. Brett said Staff has had recent 
discussions about incentivizing property to be painted to a certain pallet, however, City 
does not have legal authority to require property to be painted certain colors. Ms. 
Johnston added that requiring color pallets is asking for a contentious and drawn-out 
process. Mr. Brett suggested having a color pallet for the CRA-requested help with 
painting. Mr. Weiner asked what other municipalities are doing on this topic.  
 
Mr. Brett said Miami-Dade is one of the most broad commercial-grant programs and 
includes internal improvements, which some do not. He had learned at recent workshops 
that grants usually require improvements be permanent, fixed, non-removable, such as 
ADA, or conversion to restaurant space with grease traps, ventilation, etc. Mr. Brett stated 
he has close contact with Jorge Hernandez, Miami-Dade County CRA Coordinator, to 
see what things are done similarly. Discussion followed on these items, and all seemed 
in agreement with several examples of permanent improvements that should be allowed.  
 
Regarding historic storefront renovations, Mr. Brett said there is money in the budget for 
this sort of thing. Chair Lamberto asked if there was anything commercial in the City. Mr. 



City of North Miami Beach 
Redevelopment Advisory Board 
October 20, 2016 
Page 4 
 
Brett believed that NMB has the oldest European construction in the United States (the 
Monastery) and they do sales and weddings and other services there, so it is technically 
commercial. Mr. Sosa-Cruz said he had recently been approached about help with 
lighting and maybe the façade on the outside, so the RAB may be hearing from them. 
 
[Note: Mr. Weiner left room at 6:10 p.m., returned 6:14 p.m.]  
 
Mr. Sharpe wondered if Item C on eligibility criteria could maybe be more defined. If set 
up as a business with multiple partners in one building, it could be considered that a 
company owns it versus an individual. Did not want an applicant to think they could not 
be approved be approved with the language as it now reads.  
 
Vice Chair Vilme asked for clarification on paragraph 12, page 17, why it is going away. 
Mr. Brett explained he had drafted this program while at a conference, and noticed the 
conflict of interest statement was also in the County’s language at 6c-d. Legal counsel 
stated the Board has already adopted the Miami-Dade ethics standards, making this 
paragraph 12 redundant. Ms. Johnston stated that this conflict of interest language is for 
all County programs and not just as it impacts potential applicants; she went on to explain 
how the standards work, that the provision is governed by the State as well as the County, 
and how it applies for future board members. 
 
Chair Lamberto stated that he noticed the requirements are only for two estimates now. 
Mr. Brett said the biggest complaint from applicants is that they get three quotes, so he 
thought getting two quotes from licensed contractors would be better. A short discussion 
on the possibility of inflated estimates followed, and Mr. Brett quoted from Section 10, 
number 4: “The Executive Director would have the authority to protect taxpayer money 
from misuse or potential fraud.” 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6 – ACTION ITEM: Wastewater Impact Fee, Connection Fee, and 
Connection Charges Assistance Program. Mr. Brett stated that he had written this into 
the first Redevelopment Plan in 2004, but there has never been funding for it. Comments 
and ideas are now requested. City Staff have already given comments; legal counsel will 
weigh in after RAB gives comments so there can be only one legal review. In essence, 
this allows for commercial property owners paying taxes to receive a rebate of their 
connection fee, connection charge, or impact fee after everything is done. The program 
would increase property values, improve public health by eliminating old septic systems, 
augment business expansion and attraction opportunities. It will also reduce time for 
tenant to obtain a business license. Mr. Brett explained what all is involved in the latter.  
 
Chair Lamberto asked what imbursement is given; Mr. Brett said 50%. Currently $133,000 
is budgeted for this program. Chair Lamberto asked if a grease trap is appropriate in this 
section, to which Mr. Brett answered no. Mr. Sharpe said that a grease trap does not 
connect to the sewer line at all, and some discussion about that followed, as well as a 



City of North Miami Beach 
Redevelopment Advisory Board 
October 20, 2016 
Page 5 
 
discussion of what constitutes residential or commercial for the purpose of a BTR. Mr. 
Brett stated that almost the entire CRA is serviced by the Dade County WASD sewer 
system. This is about tie-ins to the County system; the City has a very small system in 
the CRA, otherwise it is almost all County. It has been the focus of the NMB CRA to focus 
on commercial property. Some residential is captured in the mixed-use category, such as 
residential offices and certain homesteaded properties.  
 
Ms. Johnston stated some policy direction is needed from the CRA Board. Does the RAB 
want this language to encompass residential properties, because zoning is one thing, 
how the property is used is another. The RAB must decide if they want commercial or 
multi-family or mixed use, and if mixed use, to what extent. Mr. Sosa-Cruz stated that the 
bylaws state all properties, not just commercial. Vice Chair Vilme wondered if there might 
be sanitation benefit in all properties, single-family included, being required to link to the 
City sewer. Mr. Brett said that not only is the City in favor of that, but the Board of County 
Commissioners is as well. Ms. Johnston stated that the City is interested in it, but it would 
have to be something similar to a special assessment, or perhaps they could look at a 
bond. The City is not able to reimburse for this type of thing. Mr. Brett said this is a CRA 
program, completely independent of the City, and the discussion needed to stay with the 
CRA’s purposes.  
 
Vice Chair Vilme spoke again in favor of including residential properties when one 
property is left behind in an otherwise commercial area because it is residential. It will be 
costlier to do it later on and discriminates against the citizen when everything being done 
is supposed to benefit the citizens. Mr. Brett stated that that conversation would have to 
be held with the Mayor and the Council; only dealing with the CRA here.  
 
Mr. Brett said that the CRA would like to introduce a program that allows wastewater tie-
in. The Redevelopment Plan specifically states commercial and residential uses, so the 
feedback needed is whether to focus on just commercial or include residential. Mr. Kriebs 
spoke for 19th Court, as a lot of the units there are four and under rentals. Some of the 
bigger units would be hooked up, but the others would be bypassed while the streets are 
being ripped up to put in the new sewer lines. Chair Lamberto wondered if the sewer 
project is part of CRA. Mr. Brett said that the properties have to be at least five years old, 
that this is a lateral tie-in, not extending sewer lines on down the road. Discussion followed 
about the can of worms that would open deciding which property qualifies and which 
doesn’t, and why or why not. Chair Lamberto came back to defining the issue as 
commercial properties within the CRA. Ms. Johnston said the definition will be based on 
the use of the building, commercial or residential, by people actually living there, not how 
many units create income.  
 
Mr. Brett asked for a quick agreement about the term commercial. Mr. Sharpe stated that 
in his residential neighborhood they are on septic tanks, and a lot of them do not want the 
sewer because their water bills will increase by five times. Mr. Sharpe was of the opinion 
that residential should not be included. Mr. Brett asked the Chair if he would entertain a 



City of North Miami Beach 
Redevelopment Advisory Board 
October 20, 2016 
Page 6 
 
motion so he could have some consensus as to whether to include residential use in this 
program. Chair Lamberto preferred residential not be in the CRA program.  
 
Motion was made Mr. Kriebs, seconded by Mr. Sharpe, to stay with commercial 
properties within the CRA, but with ability to revisit at a later date. In a voice vote, the 
motion carried unanimously (6-0). 
 
Mr. Bugera asked for definitions of commercial property, mixed-use, and residential use. 
Ms. Johnston explained that, for this purpose only, it is how the code is applied in the 
Planning and Zoning Department, is it used to live, as a restaurant, as an office, and 
mixed use would have more than one use. Mr. Bugera asked if they could get written 
guidelines; Vice Chair Vilme suggested he request a copy of the zoning code from the 
Building Department. Mr. Brett asked the Board to look at mixed-use residential plus retail 
on a case-by-case basis, not to exclude them, but to look at them.  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7 – ACTION ITEM: CRA and RAB Meeting Schedules FY17 and CY17. 
Mr. Brett brought the schedules forward for approval by motion, with the caveat that 
September 14, 2017, being the second Thursday, because the third Thursday is Rosh 
Hashanah. All other months are on the third Thursday.  
 
Motion was made by Vice Chair Vilme, and seconded by Mr. Kriebs, to approve the 
meeting schedule. In a voice vote, the motion carried unanimously (6-0). 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 8 – DISCUSSION ITEM: Executive Director’s Report 
 

 CRA Board approved the Commercial Property Improvement Grants for both 
Vicky Bakery and 164th Street Plaza, and also approved the pre-sunset 
Façade Beautification Program application for Victor Dante. 

 

 CRA Staff attended the Florida Redevelopment Association (FRA) Annual 
Conference in Orlando. Staff is also earning an FRA certification. 
  

Mr. Sosa-Cruz said that the City is doing a city-wide study to prioritize the sewer 
connections, with the eventual goal being to connect every single property that is separate 
from the CRA. Discussion followed about how this project could possibly get funded, 
including commercial grants, loan-forgivable programs, etc., but many of these solutions 
are overly complicated. One of the things the County program does is guarantee private 
loans to commercial properties so lenders are more inclined to make loans. Mr. Brett said 
past discussions have considered converting the grant program into a forgivable loan 
program because a lot of property owners do not have even the 50% to do the match for 
reimbursing. The County’s program uses CRA monies to secure loans from private 
lenders so the property owner can do improvements. Chair Lamberto said a lot of 



City of North Miami Beach 
Redevelopment Advisory Board 
October 20, 2016 
Page 7 
 
research would need to be done because this would be a brand new program. Mr. Sosa-
Cruz mentioned the PACE (energy efficient) program as another option, but that the City 
doesn’t promote it because it is not their program, they only participate in providing 
information. 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 9 – Next RAB Meeting: December 15, 2016 (no November meeting) 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 10 – Adjournment. With no other business to come before the Board at 
this time, the meeting was adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 



PRESENTING SPONSOR 
$2,500 

(Limited to 1 exclusive opportunity) 

 OFFICIAL SPONSOR 
$1,250 

(Limited to 6  exclusive opportunities) 

   SUPPORTING SPONSOR 
$500 

 FRIENDS OF HEART WALK 
$100-$499 

     
 
 

 

    

SELECT A SPONSORSHIP LEVEL 

WHY SPONSOR THE HEART HEALTH WALK? 
With cardiovascular disease being one of the leading causes of disability and death in women in the United 
States, the City of North Miami Beach and the Commission on the Status of Women recognized the im-
portance of getting involved in the fight to promote healthy living within our area.  In 2014, the City's 
Healthy Heart Walk was established with a goal to create an annual event that would be healthy, informa-
tive, and fun.  This year, the City will host its 4th Annual Healthy Heart Walk on Saturday, February 25, 
2017 from 8:00 AM—1:00PM. This event will be held at the Patricia A. Mishcon Field located at 16601 NE 
15th Avenue in North Miami Beach.  

 
WE INVITE YOU TO JOIN US by participating in our sponsorship program for this event.   Of course, all 
donations are tax-deductible to the extent permitted by law.  And with your sponsorship, your organiza-
tion will have the satisfaction of knowing that it contributed to our overall mission..   
 
Please review the sponsorship opportunities for this great event listed above.   A City representative will 
contact you to discuss how your company can become involved.  In the meantime, if you should have any 
questions or concerns, please contact Nicole Gomez at (305) 948-2986. 

HONOR YOUR LOVED ONES 
Donate $ 100.00 or more in honor/memory of a  

relative or friend who has been diagnosed  
with heart disease or has succumb to heart disease.  

Company/organization logo on:  
 North Miami Beach Cable Channel & 

Website  
 
 Print advertisement - Flyers, Posters, 

Banners, and Route signage  
 
 News Media (Newspaper advertise-

ments)  
 
 Company banner or signage (2) at 

event or program (must be provided 
by sponsor).  

 
 Tent (10’ X 10’) for sponsor dis-plays/

giveaways. (Tent, table and 2 chairs 
provided by the City).  

 
 Web listing on City of NMB website.  
 
 Brief speaking opportunity to address 

event participants.  
 
 Sponsor mentioned during the event 

or program.  
 
 Access to VIP/Hospitality tent (Meet & 

greet Elected Officials, Food & Refresh-
ments, exclusive Photo Opportunities).  

 
 Inclusion in Press Release recognized 

as the Presenting sponsor.  
 
 Special Recognition of your company/

organization at a North Miami Beach 
Council Meeting.  

 

Company/organization logo on:  
 North Miami Beach Cable Channel  
 City of NMB Website  
 Print advertisement - Posters and 

Programs  
 
 Company banner or signage at event 

or program (must be provided by 
sponsor).  

 
 Tent (10’ X 10’) for sponsor dis-

plays/giveaways. ( 1 Tent, 1 table 
and 2 chairs provided by the City).  

 
 Sponsor mentioned during the event 

or program.  
 
 Inclusion in Press Release recog-

nized as an Official Sponsor.  
 
 Official recognition as an Official 

Sponsor and Special Recognition of 
your company/organization at a 
North Miami Beach Council 
Meeting.  

 Tent (10’ X 10’) for sponsor dis-
plays and giveaways. (Tent, 1 
table and 2 chairs provided by 
the City).  

 
 Sponsor mentioned during the 

event or program.  

 Your personal name or company 
on the Friends of Heart Walk Ban-
ner which will be posted at the 
event  



2017 SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES 

Mayor 
George Vallejo 

 
Commissioners 

Anthony F. DeFillipo 
Barbara Kramer 
Marlen Martell 

Frantz Pierre 
Phyllis S. Smith 
Beth E. Spiegel 

 
City Manager 
Ana M. Garcia 

 
City Attorney 

Jose Smith 
 

City Clerk 
Pamela Latimore 

PLEASE COMPLETE THE INFORMATION BELOW: 

 

 
 

□ SELECT A SPONSORSHIP LEVEL  

 
□ Please make all checks payable to:  
 City of North Miami Beach  

□ Credit Cards also accepted.  Call for more information.  
 
□ MAIL TO:  
 City of North Miami Beach Parks and R.E.C. Department 
     ATTN:  Heart Walk Committee  
 17051 NE 19th Avenue  
 North Miami Beach,   FL 33162 
 

 □ INQUIRIES:   
 Please contact Chief of Staff Nicole Gomez at (305) 948-2986        

Organization/Business:       

          

Contact Person:         

          

Mailing Address:         

          

City   State   Zip   

          

E-mail Address:         

          

Company Website:       

□ PRESENTING SPONSOR ———— $2,500   

□ OFFICIAL SPONSOR ——————$1,250 
  

  

□ SUPPORTING SPONSOR ————–-$500   

□ FRIENDS OF HEARTWALK —-–$100-$400 
  

  

□ HONOR YOUR LOVED ONES —–-—$ 100 
  

  

Remember all donations are tax deductible.  

Councilwoman 
Beth E. Spiegel 

C.O.S.W. Liaison 

SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2017 



Sponsored by
COMMISSIO

N
 on

 th
e
 S

T
A

T
U

S of W
OMEN

COMMISSIO

N
 on

 th
e
 S

T
A

T
U

S of W
OMEN

HEART HEALTH WALK

M
ayo

r G
eo

rg
e V

allejo

C
o

m
m

issio
n

er A
n

th
o

n
y F. D

eFillip
o

 
C

o
m

m
issio

n
er M

arlen
 M

artell
C

o
m

m
issio

n
er B

arb
ara K

ram
er

C
o

m
m

issio
n

er Fran
tz P

ierre 
C

o
m

m
issio

n
er P

h
yllis S. Sm

ith
C

o
m

m
issio

n
er B

eth
 E. Sp

ieg
el

A
n

a M
. G

arcia, IC
M

A
-C

M
, C

ity M
an

ag
er 

Jo
se Sm

ith
, C

ity A
tto

rn
ey 

P
am

ela Latim
o

re, C
ity C

lerk 

The City of North M
iam

i Beach

City of North Miami Beach and the Commission on the Status of Women, Beth E. Spiegel, Liaison

"G
E

T
M

O
V

IN
G

!"
R

e
g

is
te

r T
o

d
a

y
!

FREE EVENT • 2.6 MILE WALK & HEALTH FAIR • MUSIC & ENTERTAINMENT   
FOOD VENDORS • INFORMATION BOOTHS • RAFFLES & PRIZES • & MORE !

Saturday, February 25, 2017
9 a.m. to 1 p.m.

Gates Open at 8 a.m. for Registration
The walk will start and end at 

Patricia A. Mishcon Athletic Field,
located at 16601 NE 15th Avenue in North Miami Beach

Registration Forms are available on the website at www.citynmb.com, click on Heart Health Walk link. Please 
return completed registration forms to the Department of Parks & R.E.C. located at 17051 NE 19th Avenue.

For more information call 305-948-2957

For m
ore inform

ation call
33
00
55
-99

44
88
-22

99
55
77



 

 

 
 

 



 





 
Patrick.Brett@citynmb.com • 17050 NE 19th Ave • NMB, FL 33162 • (305) 787-6053 •  NMBCRA.org 

 -1 - 

 

North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency 
Commercial Property Improvement Program  

 
I. Purpose  
 
The aim of the Commercial Property Improvement Program (the “Program”) is to assist applicants 
within the City of North Miami Beach (the “City”) Redevelopment Area to substantively enhance the 
visible appearance of privately owned real property. It is the goal of the North Miami Beach 
Community Redevelopment Agency (the “CRA”) to return properties to their full potential through a 
matching grant. This grant program is to assist applicants undertaking substantial renovations and 
improvements. 
 
II. Objectives 
 
The key objectives of the Program are to stimulate employment and increase business and 
investment within the CRA. Applicants should demonstrate how the improvement will: 

 Enhance the applicant’s ability to be more competitive, enter into the market, and increase 
revenue;  

 Retain existing jobs and/or increase job opportunities; and  
 Revitalize the surrounding area.  

 
 III. Eligibility Criteria 
   

a. Program funding shall be available;  

b. The property must be located within the Redevelopment Area;    

c. The property shall be zoned commercial or mixed-use, solely residential uses are ineligible;  

d. Properties shall be privately owned and required to pay real estate taxes (ie. tax-exempt 
properties are not eligible); 

e. Real estate taxes shall be current;  

f. The structures on the property must be at least five (5) years old. Recent construction is not 
eligible; 

g. Any code or building violations shall be brought into compliance prior to the issuance of any 
grants funds (grants funds shall not be used towards resolving the code or building 
violations); and  

h. The applicant shall demonstrate how the objectives of the Program (section II. Objectives) 
are met by the proposed improvements. 

 
IV. Funding Guidelines 
  
The CRA may match on a one-to-one basis up to a maximum of $25,000 for CRA Board approved 
eligible expenses. Multiple applications are permitted, but the total awards shall not exceed $25,000 
for any five (5) year period.  
 
 
 



 

 

Patrick.Brett@citynmb.com • 17050 NE 19th Ave • NMB, FL 33162 • (305) 787-6053 •  NMBCRA.org 

 -2 - 

V. Eligible Expenses  
 
Eligible expenses are those reasonable and necessary costs associated with undertaking a substantial 
improvement on the side of a building that faces a right-of-way, interior restaurant conversion, and 
life safety fire systems. Eligible expenses include permitting, labor and materials related to 
construction or installation of eligible improvements. The following are eligible improvements to be 
funded under the Program (please note “stand alone” improvements are those that may be funded 
independent of other eligible improvements that are “not stand alone” may only be funded in 
conjunction with a “stand alone” improvement or more comprehensive project): 
 
Eligible Improvements (stand-alone) 
 Façade and other exterior improvements; 
 Outdoor building lighting; 
 Permanent landscaping to include irrigation systems; 
 Permanent, fixed interior improvements to convert the property or bay to a restaurant use; and,  
 Installation of fire suppression or sprinkler system.   
 
Eligible Improvements (not stand-alone) 
 Awnings and canopies; 
 Impact resistant windows; 
 Parking lot improvements; 

 ADA-compliant improvements; 
 Painting and repair; and, 
 Code Compliance and Building Violations as part of a comprehensive improvement. 

 
All work must be performed in a first-class workmanlike manner in compliance with ordinances and 
regulations of the City and must meet all building and other applicable codes.  
 
VI. Ineligible Expenses  
 
Ineligible expenses include, but are not limited to: 

 Signage;  
 design costs;  
 general maintenance and repair;  
 minor improvements or beautification to a parking lot;  
 interior repairs or renovations, unless as a conversion plan to a restaurant use;  
 correction of code violations and ADA compliance except in instances where these expenses 

are part of eligible improvements;  
 improvements that the CRA staff deem unsuitable; and  
 improvements that do not meet the objectives of the Program, as determined by the CRA 

Board.  
 
VII. Application Procedure  
 

Applicants shall follow the steps listed below:  

a. Schedule an appointment with CRA staff to discuss the desired improvements. Please call 
(305)787-6053 or e-mail nmbcra@citynmb.com.  



 

 

Patrick.Brett@citynmb.com • 17050 NE 19th Ave • NMB, FL 33162 • (305) 787-6053 •  NMBCRA.org 

 -3 - 

b. Compile application materials and submit a completed application to the CRA. Incomplete 
application will not be accepted.  

c. CRA staff will review completed applications and make a recommendation of approval, 
approval with conditions, or denial.  The applicant will be scheduled for a meeting with the 
Redevelopment Advisory Board (RAB). 

d. The RAB will review completed applications (with the CRA staff recommendation), and make 
a recommendation of approval, approval with conditions, or denial, to the CRA Board.  

e. The applicant will be scheduled for the CRA Board, the CRA board will make a decision based 
upon the completed application, the RAB recommendation, the CRA staff recommendation 
and the Program criteria and objectives. The CRA Board’s decision is final.  

f. CRA staff notifies the applicant of the CRA Board decision. Applicants not approved by the 
CRA Board may re-apply one-year after the date of the CRA Board denial. 

g. The applicant may commence with improvements after the CRA staff issues a Notice to 
Proceed. The Notice to Proceed is an email format. CRA staff will send a letter upon request. 

h. Applications will contain two quotes from a licensed contractor for an expense being matched 
by this Program. The CRA Board may waive this requirement, upon good cause. 

VIII. Reimbursement Procedure  
 
Items completed before CRA Board review shall not be eligible for reimbursement. Upon completion 
of the approved improvements, the applicant submits a request for payment with supporting 
documents. Supporting documents include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Copies of invoices and receipts 
 Proof of payment, i.e. canceled checks  
 Any other documents that enable CRA Staff to determine project completion 
 

Staff reviews the supporting documents and conducts a site inspection. If everything is in order, the 
CRA will declare the project complete and have issued a check to the applicant for the amount eligible 
under the parameters of this Program. 
 
IX. Time Certain Completion  
 
The approved applicant will have 180 days to complete all improvements. Should an applicant need 
an extension beyond the 180 days, a written request must be submitted to the CRA Executive Director 
or designee. The Executive Director or designee may administratively extend the period by 90 days. 
The successful applicant can appear before the CRA Board to request an extension longer than 90 
days. 
 
X. Program Availability  
 
All applicants must receive CRA Board approval before CRA Staff issues a Notice to Proceed. This 
Program is subject to availability of funds. There is no waiting list. The Program applications will be 
reviewed and presented for approval on a first-come first-served basis. 
 
 
 



 

 

Patrick.Brett@citynmb.com • 17050 NE 19th Ave • NMB, FL 33162 • (305) 787-6053 •  NMBCRA.org 

 -4 - 

XI. CRA Executive Director Authority 
 
The CRA Executive Director may modify this Program to: 
 

1. Require additional documentation from the applicant;  
2. Promote transparency;  
3. Create and update the Program’s application;  
4. Protect taxpayer money from misuse or potential fraud;  
5. Improve Program efficiency; and 
6. Convert and transition prior approved applicants to this newer Program.  

 
XII. Redevelopment Plan 
 
The authority for this Program is contained in the existing CRA Redevelopment Plan (Section 7, 
Subsection A, page 2 – Areawide Façade Improvement Program and Section 8, #2, page 3 – Direct 
Financial Incentives to Stimulate Property Improvements). 
 
This authority for this Program is also contained in the 2015 Amended Redevelopment Plan that is 
being considered by Miami-Dade County Board of County Commissioners (“Areawide Commercial 
Improvement Programs,” page 18 and “Direct Financial Incentives to Stimulate Property 
Improvements” on page 25). 
 
XIII. Conflict of Interest 
 
The CRA Board has adopted the Miami-Dade County Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics.  
Applicants shall be governed by the Miami-Dade County Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics 
Ordinance, as amended, any questions about potential conflicts of interest shall be directed to the 
CRA Attorney. Applicants with a conflict of interest, as determined by the CRA Attorney, shall be 
ineligible for the grant program. 
 
XIV. Caveats 
 
The CRA Board reserves the right at its sole and absolute discretion to: 
 

 Reject any and all Program applications; 
 Postpone or cancel the Program; and 
 Waive any irregularities in the application submitted for funding. 

 
The CRA Board reserves the right to request and evaluate additional information from any 
applicant after the submission deadline as the CRA Board deems necessary. 



                    
                   City of North Miami Beach, Florida 
                        Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) 

 
Patrick.Brett@citynmb.com • 17050 NE 19th Ave • NMB, FL 33162 • (305) 787-6053 •  NMBCRA.org 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  CRA Advisory Board 

FROM:  Ana M. Garcia, Executive Director and City Manager 

VIA:  Candido Sosa-Cruz, Deputy City Manager 

Patrick Brett, Administrator 

DATE:  January 13th, 2016 

RE:  Executive Director’s Report 

 
 
CRA – Miami Dade County Water and Sewer Department Sewer Project 
 
The joint CRA – WASD sewer line extension project is nearing completion. The infrastructure 
improvement project will allow business to open quicker, higher water uses, such as restaurants, 
and improve the public health through the removal of antiquated septic systems. 
 
Below pictures of the ground breaking event held on December 12th, 2016 
 

 



 
 

    City of North Miami Beach, Florida 

       Community Development Department   

 

 

 
17050 NE 19th Avenue  North Miami Beach, Florida 33162  (305) 948-2966  Fax (305) 957-3517   www.citynmb.com  

 
TO:  Patrick Brett, North Miami Beach CRA Administrator  
  
FROM:  Richard G. Lorber, Director of Community Development    
    
VIA:  Candido Sosa-Cruz, Deputy City Manager 
 
DATE:  January 2017  
   
RE:  Update on Development within the CRA  
 
The Community Development Department presents the following information regarding new 
development within the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) area. 
 

Projects Location Zoning Status 

160 Warehouse 
 

2054 NE 161 St. 
 

 

Light Industrial 1 story warehouse. 
Approved by P&Z Board; scheduled for 
January 17 City Commission meeting.   
 

Macken Development 
17005 West Dixie 
Highway 

MU/NC 
 

19 Story mixed-use project including 
apartments, retail and office. 
Scheduled for an upcoming P&Z Board 
meeting.   
 

Vicky Bakery 1973 NE 163rd Street MU/TC 
All building permits approved, work 
underway, opening expected very soon. 

NOMA Apartments 164th St./21st Ave MU/TC 
 
Building permit application and plans 
under review by City and County. 

The Canopies – 8 story 
mixed-use apartments 

 
1640 NE 164th St 

 
 
MU/TC 
 

Proposed site plan approved by City  
 
Council on June 7, 2016. 
Permit drawings being prepared. 

Cambria Hotel 16300 NE 19 AVE  MU/TC 

 
Building has been vacated. 
Demolition Permit extended.   
Awaiting demolition. 
 

People’s Gas/TECO 15779 West Dixie Hy. MU/EC 
Designated “Green Reuse Area’ by City 
Council.  Eligible for incentives. 

 

http://www.citynmb.com/

	20160119 RAB Agenda.pdf
	102016 NMB RAB 1st draft minutes
	2017 SPONSORSHIP BROCHURE - w - rec by RW (003)
	Health Walk Postcard~2017
	HeartHealthWalkPhotos
	CRA - Heart Health Walk 2016 pdf
	ExDir Report January
	CRA monthly development memo 1-17


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


